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Room 417, Roosevelt Hotel
Jones & Eddy Streets
San Francisco, Calif.
: August 24, 1959.
Mrs. Myrtle Porterville
Finley, N. Dak.

Dear Mrs. Porterville,

Your hobby of collecting genealoglies of the Griggs
County Ploneer families for public record is a rewarding, continuing actliv-
ity I em sure. It will be highly prized by many, many descendents specu-
lating upon their progenitors who have not had the foresight to complle
the elusive facts pertaining to their ancestry. Thank you so much for the
informative material pertaining to my forebears and particularly for the
assegssment record of our old homestead Jjust east of the Cooperstown Ceme-
tery. My grandmother 'Marthia Hogensdtr Asprusten', as well as, sister,
Efthel, are buried there.

At the present time I have consliderable time on my
hands and am utilizing it in reconstructing our famlily tree from memory
because my records are all in Whittier where I hope to be in about three
months to verify some of my data. I am considerably hazy regarding the
Elsaas, Sletten branch of the family and cannot now recall the names nor
the particular relationships until I get back to my records. You may al-
ready have considerable information relative thereto, and so I shall only
mention a few of the names, so that you may be able to fit them in to the
particular generation where they belong. ASs I now recall the matters as
related to me prior to my Mother's death, Dec. 4, 1941, ( no the funeral
was Dec. 4th, Saturday, the day before Pearl Harbor) my geeat grandfather
was Jo Johnson, born or at least lving in Gudbrandsdalen, Norway. He had
a daughter, Oliana, by his first wife,and a son Haaken, by a second wife.
The Elsaas, Sletten, John and Thorwald Gunderson, famitlies are descended
from that daughter, Oliana, and many of them lived near the Ottawa Bridge
about 12 miles north of Cooperstown, or in that vacinity.

The son, Haaken, married my grandmother, Marthila,
and they lived on the tenant farm Asprusten, in @sterdalem, Norway, near
the towns of Gj#vik and Lillehamar, and the River Rena and Lake Mjgsen.
They had four children; 1) Anna Haakensdtr John§on Asprusten, married
Martinus Skramstad whose name was Haneon. 2) John Haakensen Johnson Asp-
rusten, married Karen Vestern. Grandfather, Haaken Johnson Asprusten,
passed away right after Christmas 1865, and John left for America shortly
after the first of the year 1866 arriving in Lanesboro or Rushford, Minn.
Fillmore County. He assumed the name Hogenson in America, actually
Haakensen. 3) Helene Haakensdtr Johnson Asprusten, married Christian Lien.
They lived in Nelson County 8 miles south of Tolna, N.D. and their child-
ren and grandchildren live for the most part in that area. 4) Olina Haa-
kensdtr Johnson Asprusten, married Nils Christian Anderson, who had come
to Southern Minnesota about 1860 from Telemarken, Norway, the town of
Vinje. Their Children were: Maria (Malla), Charles, Nellie, Mabel,
Julia & Efthel, twins, and Ener Osman, the writer of this letter. Olina
and Nils Anderson were married, I belleve, in 1878, just before Olina
became 18 years of age, she having been born May 20, 1860. They left
that summer or spring for Sioux Falls, S. Dak. and later came to Cooper-
stown, about 1880, attracted there by Olina's brother, John Hogenson.

The mother, Marthia and youngest daughter, Ollna, had been brought to

U.8. by John Hogenson in 1871, and they also lived near Rushford or
Lanesboro, Minn. until the whole tribe moved to N. Dak. One of the in-
cidents establishing thedate of the jJjourney of Olima and Nils Anderson to
S. Dak. was the posse pursuing the Jesse James & Younger brothers near
Medella, Minn. shortly after their robbery of the First National Bank,
Northfield, Minn. ( By the way, I examined the books of that bank about
1927 when stationed in St. Paul, Minn. as a U. 8. Internal Revenue Agent.)
The book, I de Dage, by Rflvaag, of St. Olaf's College, Northfield, Minn.



Hogenson,Anderson Lineage.

translated into and published in English as 'Gianta in the Earth' is an
interesting historical novel depicting the stmuggles of the So. Eastern
Minn. to S. Dak. treks of the pioneers. A sequel thereto is 'Peter
Victorious' by the same author. I have read them in norwegian and english,
end my mother, Olina Anderson, after reading the norse version said that
it was so realistic that it could easily have been a description of the
group in which she migrated.

Marthia Hogenson Asprusten, my grandmother, homesteaded
on I believe 80 acres near the Pinkerton Crossing on the south side of
the Sheyenne River, now commonly referred to in that community as the
'Pinkerton Bottom lands'. It could be that your assessments records for
1889 might show that ownership. She died about 1891 while living with
Olina and Nils Anderson at the cemetary farm.

I, Ener O. Anderson, was born at that cemetary farm Jan.
20, 1894; and my famXily moved to the Romness twp. farm adjoining Anton
Dahl's on the south in 1897. The picture you refer to is supposed to
have been taken that same year, and I should be the baby three years old.
We have in mother's scrap book the deed to the Romness farm which was
s0ld to Anton Dahl and is now owned by his son Selmer, I believe.

My sister Maria attended Cooperstown grammar school in the
late 1880s and early 1890s when Warner was superintendent and Mrs. Hodge
wag one of her teachers. She came to school with the Glaspells and Fier-
ings in those days. I attended Cooper High from about 1910 tc 1914 and
grafluated from the U.of N. D. in 1924 after serving in the first world
war., After my father's death in 1902 Mother attempted to operate the
farm for a few years with hired help, but in the fall of 1905 we moved
to GQooperstown where my sister Julia (Mrs. Mark Buechler, Lamoure, N.D.)
andlattended grade and high school. Please pardon my typing.

The story of Olina and Nils Anderson was written up in
the Grigge County Sentinel-Courier during the late depression years when
the ®Boondogling Wi P. A."or some such alphebetical organization was mak-
ing work for persons interested in writing up the histories of many of
~the early settlers of Griggs County.

There are so many, many more data pertinent to my story
butk this will give you a thumbnaill sketech which may add something to your
collection. When I return to Whittier, Calif. I shall attempt to put to-
gether the Olilana Sletten, Elassa, Gunderson lineage, although I have
very much less information concerning that side. I shall also get you
some snap shots of my wlfe and children and grandchiléren in case you
can use them for your record collection.

That Pinkerton Crossing area is east of Peder Knutson's
- farm and north of Anton Dahl afrm and west of the Hogenson and Idsvaag
" farms, in case that will aid you in locating it on the 1889 assessment
lists. I should ¥ery much like to have that assessment record in case
you have it.

Sindeerely yours,

Mr. & Mrs. Ener 0. Anderson.
I, also, studled two years of Norse at U. N.D. under Tinglestad while
completing my forelgn language requirements.
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; gi;n Hogenson, -the pioneeryiof |

Griggs County, was born 1

Aspgrusten, a tenant'far, (Husmandsplads) In the parish of A
Osterdalen, Norway, June 19, 1847.

His parents were Martha and Hogen Asprusten, In Norway, the
piloneerts name was John Hogenson Asprusten.

-Up to the age of nineteen years, he helped his father on the farm,
during part of the winter in the lumber woodé, and often during the
summer driving logs on the Rena and other rivers, In the year of 1867,
his father died and the same year about the first of May, he immigrated

to America to better his condition.

In the mountainous regions of Norway, making a living wag accomplished

with much hardship and having heard of the golden opportunities in
America, he decided to follow the call of his heart and to seck the land
of milk and honey.

- The pioneer decided to go to Minnesota, instead of any other state
in the union, because his cousin Hogen Johnson who left about two years
previously, sent létﬂers fromFWiﬁona, Minnesota to Mr, Hogenson in
Norway, telling in particulaf about the state in which he dwelt.

He immigrated to America about the first of May, 1867, with his
cousin, Martin Johnson, and his mother, Mrs. Oliane Johnson. The trip
was made on the sailship,‘ﬁefohdo and was piloted by Captain Harris.
The journey took six weeks and three days from Christiania (0slo),
Norway, to Quebec, Canada, During the trip, fifteen deaths occurred

and after the corpses were prepared for buriel, a brief service was

conducted by the captain and the bodies were sunk into the ocean depths,

After arriving in Quebec, the journey was continuéd by rail andas
was common in those early days, the only accommodation for immigrants
were box cars equipped with planks around the walls for seats, They
journeyed to the United States boundary to a point on Lake Huron, wheree

the passengers embarked on a lake steamer, They were paclked together

as close as possible on the main deck among bales and boxes of merchandise
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with no bedding or beds, When they got too tired standing up, the only

way to get rest was to lie down on the desk floor. In about thirty-six
they landed in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, continued from this place by rail
to LaCrosse, Wisconsin, then on a steamer on the Mississippl River to
Winona, Minnesota, which ended their journey.

In company with his cousin, Martin Johnson, and his mother, they
landed in Winona, Mirnesota, in June, 1867, without friends, acquaintances,
or even relatives at the time, no money, no knowledge of the English
language, a condition which would not be envied by any citizen., However,
though these conditions were hafd to meet, they soon overceme them. It
was summer and as they were brought up to bear hardships in their early
training in the lumber woods or other vocations in the mountein regions,
they conceived the idea at once that they could use any bush for shelter.
They had a few provisions left from the trip so they could menage to get
along a few days while seeking employment., ,

The next day, after arriving in Winona, Minnesota, they met = farmer,
Andrew Larson, from Highlend Prairie, Fillmore county, Minneéota, who ask=-
ed Mr. Hogenson to come home with him and he would try to hedp him,

He worked for Hohl, three days and was pald one dollar, which was the most
valued dollar, he had ever possessed. The next day, he went south and
came to Sylfest Topness, and he hired himself for two months and received
twenty=five dollars,

In the townshlp of Amherst, he made his home for thirteen years, work-

ing around for the farmers and in the Wisconsin timbers for two winters.

In 1868, he worked on the railroad grading, west of Rushford, and the

following jaar west of Lansboro,

His mother, Mrs; Martha Asprusten, came from Norway to Minnesota in
1872, They lived together till 18764 when the pioneer was married.

He marricd Kareh Wester, who was born-on a farm called Wéstern in the
parish of Lunner; Hadeland, Norway, on the twenty-third day of December, 18551
She came to Ameriéa with her parents éertha Rustad and Irik Western, and

five sisters in 1868, ‘2_



Mr, and Mrs, John ﬂogenson were married by Rev. Kr. Magelson at the
personage in Highland Prairie, Fillmore County, Mlinnesota, on the seventeenth
day of F;bruary,'1876.

They lived four years in Amherst, when they took Horace Greeley'!s advice;
"®o west, young man and women, to make a home Ffor yourself and your loved
ones." 1In the spring of 1880, Mr. Hogenson left Fillmore Country for the

\/%ild West, previously informed by his friend, Peter Mathiéon, who had been
employed with the government surveyors, that the northern part of Barnes
County, what is not Griggs County, was to his Jjudgment the right place for
an ideal home., Mr. Hogenson looked for timber, water and plenty of hay,
which he found within a short time, He arrived at Valley City, the twenty-
third of April, 1880, by railrosd. The next day, he started from there by
foot, arriving that day at Sibley crossing. During the night a heavy snow-
£all came which made traveling harder. He borrowed a pair of skees and

made use of them as far as where Martin TUeland's place ‘is nbw. The follow-
ing night, he camped on the bahks of the Sheyenne River not far from where
Torkel Njaa resides now. Ur, Hogenson arrived April.26, 1850 at Amund
Nelson Opheim'!s home, On april 27th, he arrived at his present location,
which has been his home in Romness Township ever since, This ends his first
trip to Griggs County.

During this trip, his friends, Peter Mat%ison met him here at his ?resenf
location., They built a log hﬁt on Section sixteen, broke five acres and
put up some hay, and made some preparations for the coming winter,

During their first trip, the first. postoffice 1n Griggs County was
;;istablished in the summer'of 1880, located on s“ction eight, Township one

hundred forty-seven, Renge fifty-eight, later named Rémness Township, on land
now owned by Seval Friswold, The postoffice was named Furham. Frank Taper
was the appointed postmaster and his sister, Mrs, Durham, as an assistant,
That office was discontinued in a year or two; and another postoffice

called Lybeck was established on Section twenty-fivey with Andrew, C

Knudson as the postmasfer.
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The mail was hauled from Newburg, ﬁear Hatton, and later a route was
established from Valley City to Pembina.

In connection with Durham Postoffiéé, Mr., Hogenson related the
following incident or e xperience that came under their observation during
the summer of 1880,

"While Mr. Taper was postmaster, Mr. Durham and his wife lived with
him In the same house. One evening in the summer of 1880, Mr, Taper and Mr.
Durham had some trouble, and according to Taper's story, r, Durham drove
him off from the place with a gun, althoughﬁ, he managed to take with him
the contents of the postoffice which consisted of a few letters."

"At thet time, Peter Mathison, Martin Johnson snd myself camped on 6ur
place; and late tn the evening, Mr. Taper arrived with a gunny sack and
some contents, telling the story about the trouble and saying he was going
to leave the country and would take the postoffice down to Opheim's., In
these early days, we thdught.a postoffice would be a great asset to a
commﬁnity, although we did not want the office and could not at the time,
well take care of it., Se objected to letting it go down eight miles from
us., After some persuvasion he left ghe office with us, Frank Taper went
away and I have néver =seen him since.

"Mr., Mathison and myself had to go back to Minnesota for our families.
During the evening and night, we instructedeartin Johnson, so he could gct
as postmadter, while we were absent. Mr., Johnson's tenure as a head of the
first pestoffice in Griggs County did not last very long.

"The next day, Mr. Durham and his wife, mounted on horses and each

‘carrying a six shooter, arrived on our grourdd, and exprcossed themselves ina

languege which would not look well in print, that there would be trouble
about fhe postoffice, As we,did not rant the postoffice, expressing our-
selves in favor of its being at their place, and as‘Mrs. Durhanfvas
assistant; she was the person that should have it, they went home, using
a more pleasant language than when they came."

This incidend will show that the postoffice in early days could be



moved without any gevvernment consent.

During his trips in 1880, through the summer of the same year, the
fdllcwing settlers arrived in Romness Towamship: Ole B. Olson and his sons,
Gilbert, Bernt, Martin and Theodore, from Iowa; Andrew C, Knudson, from
Wisconsin; Mrs. Anna Nelson and her sons, Andrew and Nels, and her daughter
Marie, from Towa; John E. Qualey, from Minnesota; John Dahl, from Iowa,
Martin Johnson, from Minnesota; snd Iver Sk m, from Iowa, settling across
the line in Steel County. This completed the settlement in 1880,

Mr. Mathison and Mr., Hogenson returned to Minnesota in the latter‘part
of July. During the summer months, they worked out in harvesting amd made
preparation to move their families and property to their new location.

On September 1, 1880, he started back overland with a yoke of oxen
hiteched %o a prairie schooner in company with his wife and two children
(Hellene and Edward), Peter Mathison and wife, They drove twenty-six head
of sheep and sixbeen head ofcattle, smdcovered a distamce of about twenty
miles a day; They went through Rochester, Zumbrota, Canon Falls to St. Paull
Minnesota, Passing through the main street of St. Paul the sheep crowded on
on the street car track so the har se-drawn car had to stop for the sheep
to move forward. They continueﬁ‘the journey through St. Cloud, Alexandria,
Fergus Falls and to Fargo,.which'waé only a smll village at that time.
From Fargo, they came across country through the present site of Hillsboro
and Mayville, from there to Golden Lake in Steel County, where the last
sbttders were found., From there or paet of the way, they were gulded by
Mount Franklin in Romness Township and other hills near their place, They
arrived at their homesteud on September 30, 1880, covering a distance of
approximately six hundred miles. Directly after his arrival, he make
two trips to Valley City, a distance of fifty milles, with his yoke of
oxen, for supnles and provisions. It took him five to six days to make
the trip. :

Nearly all the first settlers established their homes in the timber
close to the river, not suspecting the threatening floods that endangered

them when the Sheyenne River would be swelled Dy spring thaws.
-



- During the winter of 1880-1881l, a heavy.snowfall averaging about threé
feek on the level, had fallen., In the spring, the snow melted and swelled
the river, naturally flooding the lowlands., Joln Hogenson, being one of

the settlers trapped by the waters, narrates the following experilence:
"One afternoon I noticed the waters rising gradually and before night
it was over the tTop of the banks, so we made preparations immediately to
move to higher»land. We .had a tent, which we pitched up and moved the
fanily into, drove the cattle out, but left the sheep. & settler by the
nme of Martin Johnson agreed to remain in the tog hut during the night. A
gun was left in nis charge with the instructions for him to discharge it in
case the fiood should threaten the place,"
"Mr, Johnson had arrived earlier in the day from a long tramp through
the snow and slush from Valley City, end being weary and tired, thought a
good bed and some sl ep would be a rare treat for him, During the night we
were watching the water and noticed it rising gradually, but heard no re-
vort from Mf. Johnson, 4s soon as daylight broke in the morning, we hitdied
up =« yode of oxen to a wagon and made the trip %o the log hut. wWe peeped
through the window and saw thewater reaching nearly up to the bottom of
his bed, und Mr, Johnson sound asleens We awakened him, and mudr to his
surprise, he found himself surrounded bv water, he had to plunge right.into
it to get out of the hut. we rushed about to get the sheep moved and also
some of the household goods. Among the articles, I notices a sack of flour
which I went to get, and not being aware of the trap door leading to the
cellar had floated up, I accidentally stepped into the opening and in I
-~ want, flour and all,
| During the flood, their provisions commeneed to run low, They still
had some coffee, flour and syrup in their possession tut they were fifty
miles from town, and water everyvhere around them, the higher land being
the on ly dry ploce. They had to "skimp" along‘until the water wax ld sink
down so they could #& go to town for provisions.
The following incident happened in the spring af 1881,
i Oy e



One day a starved hunter, Mr. Matt, came along'ahd wanted to board
with Mr. Hogenson. He had a gun andAsome ammunition along. as their
meah‘supply was almost gone, they pramised to help him out, providing he
would get some meat for them, He promised to do all he eould, although
game was not plentiful at that time of the year, He shot a couple of
prairie chickens the first few days. However, one morning when the meat
:_supply wag gone (Mr., Hogenson believed it was providence that sent it) a

large, lonely goose came soaring in the alr, looking for a pl:uce to settle
down, when the goose came over a bluff east of their location, she must
hgve noticed a smzll lake formed by the melting snow close to their camp,
and there she settle d down.. Mr. Matt got his gun and started off, remark-
ing, HThere's a dead goese.,” This was true enough for as soon as they
heard the report of the zun, the goose flopped her wings and could move no
more, - The next thiﬁg wes to get the bird on dry land without getting too
wetes 4t the time, Mr. Hogenson had an ox which they had trained for riding
bareback, so he got the ox an¥d started out to get the goose on the small
lake. when he came close to the bird and reached for 1t, the ox became
frightened and started to do some broncho stunts, flopping Mr. Hogenson of £
into the water. wrhe ox made for the shore and Mr. Hogenson picked up the
goose and Suartca for camp. Soon preparations were médde to get the goose
roaster, Mr, Hogenson remarked that they would have a "real" feast for
onee, and they amused themselves over their first hunting experience in
Romness Township.
These and other.experilences, bdth laughable and serious, were had by
g the early pioncers, Many a pleasant and interesting moment has the pioneer
s® nt recalling past memories of the sacrifices and trials they went through
in order to make an easier pathway for the coming generation, and their
community a hapnier and more cheerful place in which to dwelly
k Mr, Hogenson's early farm machinery was an old fashioned walking plow
and a wooden harrowj oxen were used for power.
He bought his first horses in thé year of 1883.
s :



The early crops were wheat and osts. The first year, five acres of
wheat was not very good due to his poor farming. The following year the
yield was thirty bushels to the acre of wheat.

The fuel in early days was wood, Which they got from the timber near
théir location. | A

The first school of Romness Township was bullt in 1883; located on

.Section fourteen. The teacher was Mr. Markwood.

In the early part of the pioneer days, they did ndf have churches
out held the services in the different homes. Mr. Rev., Vaage was the
first traveling preacher.

In 1882, the firét church congregation was organized by Rev. J.
Lundeby. They bullt a church in 1897 located on section twenty-tww.

The congregation named the church Ringsesker, having Rev. O« K. Quamme
Eg thelr paétor.

Nr. Hogenson served as postmaster from 1887 to 1904. He was
appointed postmaster of Romness Township during the yeer 1887. The
Romness postoffice was established a lew years e&rlier with Peter Mathlson
as postmester. 1In 1887, In 1887, he was elected County Commisioner for
one term, 8also acted as town and school clerk for many years., He took
an active part in organi ing and establishing the Romness Methodist Church
of which, he has been a member since it first started, He.has alwajs
been ready to help in worthy causes for moral uplift of the community.

% Mr. and Mrs, John Hogenson heave spent forty-s ven years in Romness
Township and can recall many hardships and. pleasnht memories of their
pioneer cays.

They have had nine children in all, of whom seven are atil]l 1iging:
Edward Bellevin, Van Couv er, British Columbia; Regna Josephine (Mrs. Carl
Bue), Peter Lewis and August Nicolase, Cooperstown, North Dakota; Henry
Josehp and Otto Melvin, Portland, Oregon; and Ida caroline (Mrs., Lawrence
Sterbro,) Aneta, North Dakota. The other two, who passes away are

Hellene Mathilde (Mrs. Ole Andersou§ in 1924; and Clara Julis in 1908,
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place in memory of the first picnesr famlly. 9 % /‘?@%Zw

They have been‘the grandparents of twenty-three grandchildren in all
of who eighteen are still living. Hellene Mathilde was the mother of:
teh hildren, John Oiiver, Lillian Kathleen, Ekmer Spencer, Marion
Henriette, Claré Alice, Arthur Lewis; Ruth Irene, Ida Elizebeth, Wilfred
Douglas and Myrtle Florence. Régna Josepbhine, the mother ot two childreﬁ,
Borghild Constance and John Calmer., Ida Caroline, mother of three
children, Caloline Josephine died 1923, Laura Irene and Raymond Leonard,
Peter Lewls, the parent of twins, Karline Jean and Mary Lois didd 1925.-
Ldward B%llvin, father of five children, Gladys Elizabeth, and Clarence
Lyle, Cecil Loyd, died 1927, Barl died 1925 and Raymond. Otto, the father
of one son, Glynomore., -

The pioneert's present home is located Township one hundred forty-seven,
range 58, section 16 of Griggs County. His present location is about a
half mile across the river from his pioneer bulldings. I”c is located near
the bend of the Shkeyenne River, with the river and the woods forming the °
background for his buildings.

The following accounts of early conditions and happenings is written
by the Pioneer, John Hogenson.

Amund Nelson Opheim, also called Pioneer Nelson Qas:the first
settler in what is not called Washburn Township, and also the first setfler
in Griggs County. Mr. Opheim came from Winesheck County, Towa in 1879,
preceding all the other settlers in the Sheyenne Vglley, and in what later
became Griggs County, by one year, He entered government land on Section
12 of Washburn Township, twenty to twenty=five miles from the nearest
setfler or neighbor, built‘his log cabin covered with elm bark for roof,
with no floor, moved his family, in then prepared for the winter.

~The log house 1s still on the s=me place now,vowned.by hilis son Hels
Opheim, but it has changed its bark roof for ‘one of shingles and its
earthen floor to one of lumber. Some of the old ploneers would like very

much to ser the house preserved, either on the place or moved to the

1 1 2

country seat and erect=d either on the Courthou:e blook or some other

S



Bering the tally, they héd been busy preparing shelter for themselves
and their stock, not noticing that thelr provisions were shrinking every da
day, until winter came, when heted to start out for Grand Forks, eighty
milés away, without a road, and twenty miles or more to the first house.

While he was gone, one of the Dakota blizzards came and he was

laid up two weeks before he could return and the fokks at home had to
grind their own meel on the coffee mill,

In the spring of 1881, new settlérs and land seekers came inbo this

territgry and the only place to go for a meal was Opheim's; amd Mrs,
OPheim, that noble and self-sacrificing woman, would work early and late
to accomodate and feed the newcomers,

Mr. Opheim died after not many years, long before he could reap
any benefit from his strugglés in providing a home for himself and his
loved cones. Mrs. Opheim lived many years and died in peace, They both

" rest in the cemetary which was laid our on their own land.

In 1880, ceme C. P. Balkan, Amud Fluto, Oke Skren, Ole Havis and
John Torfin, who took land in Washburn Township. Aren Luckason, John
Atchison and Alex Sanders arrived the same year and took land in
Sverdrup Township.

So far all the settlers were in the valley, strung along the river
from the southern to the norther boundary of the county, not suspecting
anyone would settle on the prairies. But the unexpected happend, and
word was brought into the_valley that someone with abundant financial
étrength had bought a large block of land on the prairie and Would
stert preparations in the fall so as to be ready to turn the sod and begin
active farming operations in thg spring of 1881y Apen investigation |
the rumors were found to be true. The Cooper Brothers had actually
pufchased many thousand acres and were getting ready to operate theilr
farms, which proved to be a great asset to the country in bring ing

more settlers and furnishing employment to those already here and to

néw arrivals.

Rollin C. Cooper was the manager of the Cooper Brothers farms until
<104



it was dissolved by mutuasl consent. Besides his farming interest, he
erected one of the first two grain elevators and personally operated them.
He was one of the orgénizeré of the Cooperstown-Sanborn and Tnrtle
Mountain Rallroad, and served as-its president divring its construction
until i1t was completed as far as Cooperstown when it was sold to the
Northern Paciflc Railroad Company in the early eighties., MNr Cooper as

| ~ well as his railroad project aided materially in building up many public
Eg enterprises in the community. R. C. Cooper was the founder of'thé ity

‘§ of Cooperstown and it was named in the honor or the Cooper Brothers.

When Griggs County was formed from Trail and Foster Counties in 1881
and (organlzed on June 10, 1881) R. C. Cooper was one of the County
L. o

= Coﬁ.@s&ignaﬁs; appointed June 16, 1882.) The County Seat was located at

Hope but in November, the same year, by a vote of the people it was moved
to Cooperstown.
Mr., Cooper has served the community in many important-positions and

has stood for right and justice. He was elected to the House of Representa-

— gives 1in 1894, and to the Senate in 1898, serving one .term in each branch

~

of - the legislvture.

While a member of the house, he was chairman of the railroad committee
and wes a member of other important committess, He has always been a
resident of Cooperstown and vicinity, except in later years when he has

pertly retired from business and found time to.follow the wild goose south

in the fall but returns in the spring. He 1s still aective, though he has
eighty-one years to his credit, and takes great interest in Griggs County

which he has greatly helped and done his part in upbuilding.

a In 1882, the railroad gyas completed to Hope and the preliminary
;

survey pointed to Sheyenne. The tounsite boomers came into the valley and
located the town of Mardell on Section 13, land now owned by Nels Arneson,

«in Washburn Township. It sprung up like a mushroom and vanished almost as

-

quickly as it came when it became evident that the projected railroad would

not come thet wgy.

Mardell had.at one time & commidious hotel, two general storeg, oHe
=1 e :
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nerdware store end one drug store, land locaters to assist settlers in
locating ihgir'claims and getting their filings recorded in the United
States land office. Pettifogers, land sharks and everything that belongs
to an brderly village, except a saloon which was at thet‘time the
cormonly the first need looksd for in a new town,

The people of thé&t town were pProsperous and contented until it was

‘fPound out they would miss the railroad. The road to Cooperstown at that

4 Y-

time was nearing completion. Business men packed their goods, some
moved to Copperstown and others to Hope. Some of the buildings were still
there but long before this they have been moved.,

There was a class of early pioneers, considered by many to Dbe
undesirable; later, however, meny of them proved to be valuable assets to
the population and a gre=t asset in the development of the éountry and
communit—~. These early settlers I have in mind were a2 number of single
young men who ceme from Iowa, Minnesota, Wisconsin and other states,
who imegined thet a new country like this would be the proper place to get
rich quiek, start a farm and bulld a good home so the single blessed-
ness could be removed sometime in the mesr future.

When they arrived, the first thing was to select their clalms.

Then they built their shack, moved in,tthen lived alone, doing their own

cooking and washing, end by all appearances were quite contented., Some

of them had prior experience in cooking but others did not although all of
them did the best they could. Griddle cakes were an every day ration and
their main item of subsistance.

But the béckelors, as well as others, soon disc¢overed that this
idea of getting rich quick and hﬁving a good farm and home énd have the
necessity for liging in single blessedness removed, did not turn out at

once; for crops, year alter year, turned out to be of light yield because

-

=

of draught, brost, hail and the destructiveness of the gophers., If any
crop was heorvested and saved, the money lender would appear and demand
nis pay. He hed his cash invested at twelve percent and held & mortagae

on the crop and person&l'property.lzThus the paying or renewing at



at another twenty-two per cent of interest ‘and commission demanded, it
o dhina L e Ve tat

But some years later, prospects took a turn and times.begame bfight,
crops 'better, mortgages were removed from the properties, new acquaint=-
ances were made and the feminine sex had greatly increased among the
settlers and manv of the yound men who were single, won their neighborits
daughter, providing she was willing to move into dug~out or log cabin
to dpend their honeymoon.

These. pioneers were the resl builders of the country, and where
their lowly shatks once stood, you will now find beautiful farm homes,
with modern conveniences and improvements, with grown-up sons and daughters,
well contented and prosperous. Some of their sons are now out in
Montana, Canada, and other places, having teken up thelr father's old trade
in the flapjadk factorys

Unllike many of the esrlier day frontler settlements, Griggs County
ploneers vere saved from the murderous and torturous Indians. Aside Frém
the remains of abandoned wigwans in the woods along the river and the spread
of buffalo bones upon the'prairie, there were no visible sigms that the
Indians had ever made this immediate country their home to any considerable
éxtént or even their hunﬁing grounds., Consequently, there never should
have been any fear of the consequences of an uprising.

Nevertheless, stories were told and retold of how frontier settle-
ments had been visiked by the savages and how they had proceeded in their

mission of ravaging and murdurings. Fresh in the memory of those early

days was the Sious massacre in Minnesota in 1862. Then in 1863 came the
expedition of General Sibley through wat is not Griggs County. He campled
at S bley Lake Just south of Binford. The remains of his camp (Camp
Siibley) are still to be seen. This camp was established to care for the
gick and footsore soldiers Before gheriing on in pPursint of Lne Indiansv
thet had traveled toward the Missouri‘River. The fate ol the @lustér
éxpedition in Montena had barely ceased to be news when word came to our

-13-
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pioneers that a Manitoba Tribe of Indians were on the war path. In

éaditiqn‘to all these rough reports a real danger was thought to exist
because of the residence of Indians on a reservation ne:r Devils Leke,
practically £t our very door.

All these stories with a few facts would naturally tend to create a
feaéling of uneasiness and restléssness especially on the part of those
early pioneers who were nervously inclined. Imaginations were working
overtime. There was constant fear that the cunning and tréacherous
savages would escape the watchfulness of the soldiers on the reservations
and descend upon our settlement before any call could be made for help.

Under these conditions, it was an ea2sy matter for alarmists to meet
with success in building up some feeling of the settlers, The rumors
and false stories broadcasted were many, and theyalways came from the
North. In due time, the rumors took root in Cooperstown. Some of the
citizens, teking the report very seriouély, while others laughed at the
notion of preparing for a possible attack by the Indians.

Cooperstown was wholly unprepared to make a Substantial‘defense dn

‘the case of a possible attack. No fortifications had been thrown up

there were no arms and amm nition with which to underatl-e a success-
ful defense in the case of a possibgé attack. However, a blacksmith by
the mane of Nels Kiel took it upon himself to see that something was done,
even though the town authorities refused to be moved by the rumors of
danger. With the thought in mind that there was no time to be lost and
that stmething must be done a2t once, this blacksmith c1led upon the
businesspen and others to finance his project.

With the financilal end of the matter solved, the blacksmith preceed-
ed to manufacture.a crude cénon and by the time the next rumor floated
in the settlement, the defensive weapon was re-dy for action. It was
mounted, I presume, on the outskirts of the town, probably upon ﬁhat
was then called Vinegar Hill, that little 1ift of ground to the nobth of
the business section of Cooperstown; Near this canon the blacksmith
stationed himself and kept a careful watch through the night, patroling

i h
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Qﬁ-faithfully, while other less nergous people slept.

.Aene evéning e self-appqinted watchman reported that the enemy was

ésmpea north of town and that he observed objects dancing about the camp-

Tire. .While the blecksmith stayed by his cannon to gi%e aid when it was
needed, some of the most daring of the citizens mounted their horses and
rode &n the direction of the supposed Indian Camp to investigate.

- Investigation disclosed that the campfire was nothing more than a burning'
straw stacks and.the dancing Indians proved to be sparks and shadows from

the fire. As far as I know why this was the last scare in Griggs Countye.

The first white children born 1in Romness Township was a boy, Anton
Olson, born January 31, 1881 and Elmer Matison born May 17, 1881,

The first death known to have occurred among the pioneers in Griggs
County was that of Mr. Ulven who was & victim of the severe weather in the
winter of 1881.

Ulven had & eclaim up the Sheyenne River and during the.summer, fall
~and into the winter, why he was employed over in the Goose River settlement

“where he could earn some money and be in position to spend the balence of

I sg he called it

the winter "holding down his claim'
During the winter, when Ulven left Goose River settlement for his

claim, he headed in a westerly direction necessary, undertaking to walk the

distance of tWanty miles., There were no roads to guide him, nor were there

any other guides, only the wide expanse of prairie. He lost his bearings on

the trip and wanderéd that day and night and part of-the next before he finally

landed at the homestead of 0le Skren, wiich was just a short distance South
%and East of what is not ?wdw as-tﬁe Bridge School on the Sheyen-e River 1in

Washburn Township.

Ulven was completely exhausted, his feet frozen, and he was in a

delirious condition. Then mortification set in there and since thse

_assistance of a doctor was not available to the pioneers in those days, he
\./) ) - B 2 3
died in spite of all the Skren family could do, His remains were laid to g

rest in what was known 2s the Opheim Celetary, he being the first pioneer

" ’ iy
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The first election was held in Griggs County (at that time, it was
part ofTrail Couhty) at the residence of Omund Nelson Opbeim on November
2y 1880; although being a Presidential election, polities did not creute

~ maeh excitement mostly for the reason that North Dakota had a Territoriai
government. We huad no "voice" in electing president, neigher in choice
of Territorial officers except a delegate to Congress, We were allowed

=~ to elect a Representative to the Territorial Legislature to be convened

at Yankton in January, 1881.

Knute Nomland was &lected to renresent the district in the House of
Representatives in the legislature; and county offlcers of Traill County
were also elect d at this election.

Nearly all pioneers, ten or twelve in n-mber, attended the election,
orga ized and elected Judges and Clerks as follows: Omund Nelson Opheim,
Ole Johmmon,Skren, C. P. Balkan, John Hogenson and John Dahl, the fifth
officer is my memory does not fall me ‘at this late date.

When the votes were cunvassed, C. P. Balkan rasthe candidate %o
carry the.returns across the open prairie; no-house for the first twenty
miles over to the comnty seat being at Caedonia, located on the Red River
>about sixty miles away. Mr, Balkan carried the ballots in a woeden box
across the country by foot.

Organization of Grigss County and the second election. -Griggs County
was named in honor of Captain Alexander Griggs, and formed from part of
Trail and part of Foster Counties, Bebruary 18, 1881 and June 10, 1882,

Allen Breed, Rollin Cooper and William Clives was apponited County
‘- “commissione s by Governor Ordway, for the purpose of orgainzing the County

Seat.at Griggs County., The Gounty Seat was located at Hope but moved to
Cooperstown November 7, 1:82, but the vote of the people.
Oon March 8, 1883, the legislature formed Steele County aat of part of
- Trail County and the two easbern tiers of townships of Griggs County,

#
Nt

leuving the latter at its present size.
When Griggs County was organized; the seat of Govermment was lef?®

at Hope although ﬁhat pluce was located almost 1In the Southeastern corner.
S e
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Soon‘thefeafter Cooperstown was plotted as being a more central point and
was haturally favored bv the settlers in the western part, vhich lead
contest for the removal of the county seat from Hope %o Coopefstown.

During the campaign of 1882, Griggs County was divided into three
election districts with polling places at Hope, Cooperstown, and Ottowa.

The main issue was.the moving of the county Seat.

Interested parties on both sides made preparations to carry the
election and many rumors circulated during the campaign before and after
the election what each partyihad undertaken. It was said that Hope parties
hired thirty idle men from a neighboring county, fed and paid them for
thirty days so as to make them legal voters. At the eve of election, men
went over to ¥uesp Hope from Cooperstown to persuade them to vote for
Cooperstown which the return of the election preed to contaln some truth by
the hendso me vote Coope stown recelved in that precinect. Many othér cunning
storics besides these were told to "beat" the other party. "pire water" was
freely used in some quarters.

The election was held and returns showed it was carried by Cooperstown
with a handsome majority.

Then preparations were.made to have the seat of government moved to S
Cooperstown but objections were made by some of the people of Hone. H. P.
Smart, Reglster of Deeds and County Clerk wasfavoring Cooperstown and had
possession of the prinbipal records, which were taken over to Cooperstown
during the night and placed in a granary under groynd, Al Pinkerton,
later sheriff, was one of the guardsmen. Several nights later, some of the
Hope sportsmen over, held up the guard and took the records away from theuls

Then for a time Cooperstown, the County Seat, had a granary for a
Courthoure., The offices was Reéister of-Deeds, and the County Clerk, but
they had no records.

Thén plahs were laid to apprehend, arrest and prosecute the perpe-

trators but sometime later the records were returngd. This ends the

County Seat controversy. 17
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Biography of John Hpgenson
--Borghild Bue, Granddaughter
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John'H%genson, the pioneer of Griggs County, was born in Asperusten,
a tenant farm, (Husmandsplads) in the parish of Aamot, Osterdalen,
Norway, June 19, 1847.

His parents were Martha and Hogen Asprusten. In Norway, the pio=
—-neer's name was John Hogenson Asprusten.

Up to the age of nineteen years, he helped his father on the farm,
during part of the winter in the lumber woods, and often during the
summer driving logs on the Rena and other rivers. In the year of 1867,
his father died and the same year about the first of May, he emigrated
to America to better his condition. :

In the mountainous regions of Norway, meking a living was accom-
plished with much hardship and having heard of the golden opportunities
in America, he decided to follow the call of his heart and to seek the
land of milk and honey. :

The pioneer decided to go to Minnesota, instead of any other state
in the union, because his cousin Hygen Johnson who left about two years
previously, sent letters from Winona, Minnesdvta to Mr. Hogenson in
Norway, telling in particular about the state in which he dwelt.

He emigrated to America about the first of May, 1867, with his
cousin, Martin Johnson, and his mother, Mrs. Oliane Johnson. The trip
was made on the sailship, Refondo and was piloted by Captain Harris.
They journey took six weeks and three days from Christiania (0slo),
Norway, to Quebec, Canada. During the trip, fifteen deaths occurred
and after the corpses were prepared for burial, a brief service was
conducted by the captain and the bodies were sunk into the ocean depths.

After arriving in Quebec, the Jjourney was continued by rail and as
was common in those early days, the only accommodation for immigrants
were box cars equipped with planks around the walls for seats. They
journeyed to the United States boundary to a point on ILake Huron, where
the passengers embarked on a lake steamer. They were packed together
€8s closely as possible on the maln deck among bales and boxes of merchan-
dise with no bedding or beds. When they got too tired standing up, the
only way to get rest was to lie down on the degk floor., In about thirty-
six they landed in lMllwaukee, Wisconsin, continued from this place by

_rail to LaCrosse, Viisconsin, then on a steamer on the Mississippi ‘liver

~ to Winona, Minnesota, which ended their journey.

L.
‘ In company with his cousin, lMartin Johnson, and his mother, he
landed in Winona, Minnesota, in June, 1867, without friends, acquaintances)
or even relatives at the time, no money, no knowledge of the English
language, a condition which would not be envied by any citizen. However,
though these conditions were hard to meet, they soon overcame them. It
was summer and as they were brought up to bear hardships in their early
training in the lumber woods or other vocations im the mountain regions,
they concelved the idea at once that they could use any bush for shelter.
They had a few provisions left from the trip so they could manage to get

along a few days while seeking employment.
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The next day, after arriving in Winona, liinnesota, they met a farmer,
Andrew Larson, from Highland Pralrie, Fillmore County, Minnesota, who
asked Mr. Hogenson to come home with him and he would try to help him.

He worked for Hohl three days and was paid one dollar, which was the -
most valued dollar he had ever possessed. The next day he went south
and came to Sylfest Topness, and he hired himself for two months and
"received twenty-five dollars.

In the township of Amherst, he made his home for thirteen years,
working around for the farmers and in the Wisconsin timbers for two
winters. In 1868, he worked on the rallroad grading west of Rushford,
and the following year west of Lansboro.

{is mother, lMrs. Martha Asprusten, came from Norway to Minnesota
in 1872. They lived together until 1876, when the pioneer was married.

He marrlied Karen Westerfp who was born on a farm called Western in

~ the parish of Iunner, Hadeland, Norway, the twenty-third day of Deecenber,

1855, ©She came to Americaiwith her parents, Bertha Rustad and Irik
Western, and five sisters in 1868.

Mr. and Mrs. John Hogenson were married by Rev. Kr. Magelson at the
parsonage in Highland Prairie, fillmore County, Minnesota, on the
seventeenth day of February, 1876.

They lived four years in Amherst, when they took Horace Greeley's
advice: "Go West, young men and woman, to make a home for yourself and
your loved ones." In the spring of 1880, lr. Hogenson left Fillmore
County for the Wild West, previously informed by his friend, Peter
lathison, who had been employed with the government surveyors, that the
northern part of Barnes County, what is now Griggs County, was to his
Judgment the right place for an ideal home. lr. Hogenson looked for
timber, water and plenty of hay, which he found within a short time.

He arrived at Valley City, the twenty-third of April, 1880, by railroad.
The next day, he started from there by foot, arriving that day at Sibley
Crossing. During the night a heavy snowfall came, which made traveling
harder. He borrowed a pair of skis and made use of them as far as where
llartin Ueland's place is now. The following night, he camped on the
banks of the Sheyenne River not far from where Torkel Njaa resides now.
lir. Hogenson arrived April 26, 1880 at Amund Nelson Opheim?s home. On
April 27, he arrived at his present location, which has been his home

En Romness Township ever since. This ends his first trip to Griggs
‘wounty.

During this trip, his friend, Peter Mathison, met him here at his
present location. They bullt a log hut on Section 16, broke five acres
and put up some hay, and made some preparations for the coming winter.

During their first trip, the first postoffice in Griggs County was
established in the summer of 1880, located on Section 8, Township 147,
Range 58, later named Romness Townshlp, on land now owned by Seval
Friswold. The pOstoffice was named Burham. ° Frank Taper was the
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appointed postmaster and his sister, Mrs. Durham, as an assistant. That
office was discontinued in & year or two; and another postoffice called
Lybeck was established on Section 25, with Andrew C. Knudson as the

postmaster.

b i The mail was hauled from Newburg, near Hatton, and later a route
‘was established from Valley City to Pembina.

In connection with Durham Postoffice, lr. Hogenson related the
following incident or experience that came under thelr observation during
the summer of 1880.

"While Mr. Taper was postmaster, Mr. Durham and his wife lived with
him in the same house. One evening in the summer of 1880, Mr. Taper and
Mr. Durham had some trouble, and according to Taper's story, Mr. Durham
drove him off from the place with a gun, although he managed to take =
with him the contents of the postoffice which consisted of a few letters.”

"At that time, Peter Mathison, Martin Johnson and myself camped on
our place; and late in the evening , Mr. Taper arrived with a gunny sack
and some contents, telling the story about the trouble and saying he
was golng to leave the country and would take the postoffice down to
Opheim's. In these early days, we thought a postoffice would be & great
agset to a community, although we did not want the offiece and could not
at that time well take care of it. We objected to letting it go down
elght miles from us. After some persuasion he left the offlice with us.
Frenk Taper went away and I have never seen him since." :

"Mr., Mathison and I had to go back to Minnesota for our families.
During the evening and night, we instructed llartin Johnson, so he could
act as postmaster while we were absent. Mr. Johnson's tenure as a head
of the first postoffice in Griggs County did not last very long."

"The next day, Mr. Durham and his wife, mounted on horses and each
carrying a six shooter, arrived on our ground, and expressed themselves
in a language which would not look well in print, that there would be
trouble about the postoffice. As we did not want the postoffice, ex-
pressing ourselves in favor of ite being at their place, and as Mrs.
Durham was assistant, she was the person that should have it, they went
home using a more pleasant languege than when they came."

i This incident will show that the postoffice in early days could be
L~§Uved without any government consent.

During his trips in 1880, through the summer of t he same year, the
following settlers arrived in Romness Township: Ole B. Olson and his
sons, Gilbert, Bernt, liertin and Theodore, from Iowa; Andrew C. Knudson,
from Wisconsin; Mrs. Anna Nelson and her: sons, Andrew and Nels, and her
daughter larie, from Iowa; John E. Qualey, from Minnesota; John Dahl,
from Towa; Martin Johnson, from Minnesota; and Iver Slem, from Iowa,
settling across the line in Steele County. This completed the settlement
in 1880.
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. Mr. Mathison and lr. Hogenson returned to Minnesota in the latter
part of July. During the summer months, they worked out in harvesting
and made preparation to move thelr families and property to their new
location.

p On September 1, 1880, he started back overland with a yoke of oxen
hitched to a prairie schooner in company with his wife and two children
(Hellene and Edward), Peter Mathison and wife. They drove twenty-six
head of sheep and sixteen head of cattle, and covered a distance of
about twenty miles a day. They went through nocqester, Zumbrota, non
Fells to St. Paul, Minnesota. Pasgsing throu"a the main street of S%
Paul, the sheep crowdéd on the street car track so the horse-drawn car
had to stop for the sheep to move forward. They continued the journey
through St. Cloud, Alexandria, Fergus Falls and to Fargo, which was only
a small village at that time. From Fargo, they came across country
through the present site of Hillsboro and Mayville, from there to Golden
Lake in Steel&County, where the last settlers were found. From there
or part of the way, they were guided by llount Franklin in Romness Town-
ship and othér hills near th61” place. They arrived at thelr homestead
on September 30, 1880, covering a distance of approximately six hundred
miles. Directly after his arrival, he made two trips to Vglley City,
a dilstance of fifty miles, with his yoke of oxen, for supplles and pro-
visions. It took him five to slx days to make the trip.

Nearly all the first settlers established thelr homes in the timber
close to the river, not suspecting the threatening floods that endangered
them when the Sheyenne River would be swelled by spring thaws.

During the winter of 1880-188l, a heavy snowfall averavlng about
three feet on the level, had fallen. In the spring, the snow melted and
swelled the river, naturally flooding the lowlands. John Hogenson, being
one of the settlers trapped by the water 8, narrates the following ex-~
perlence:

"One afternoon I noticed the waters rising gradually and before
night it was over the top of the banks, so we made preperations immedi-
ately to move to higher land. We had a tent, which we pltched mp and
moved the family 1nto, drove the cattle out, but left the sheep. A
settler by the name of Martin Johnson agreed to remein in the log hut
durinD the night. 4 gun was left in qis charge with the Lnstructlons
for him to dlscnarwe it in case the flood snould threaten the place."

!
3 "Mr. Johnson had arrived earlier in the day from a long tramp
1rough,the snow 2afl slush from Valley City, and being weary and tired,
thought a good bed and some sleep would be a rare treat for him. During
the nlrht we were watching the water and noticed it rising gradually,
but heard no report from Mf. Johnson. As soon as daylight bfoke in tle
morning , we hitched up a yoke of oxen to & wagon and made the trip to
the log hut. We peeped through the window and saw the water reaching
nearly up to the bottom of his bed, and ir. Johnson sound asleep. We
awakened him, and muech to hils surprise, he found himself surrounded by

-water; he-had to plunge right into it to get out of the hut. We rushed
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about to get the sheep moved and also some of the household goods. A-
mong the articles I noticed a sack of flour which I went to get, and
not being aware that the trap door leading to the cellar had floated up,
I accidentally stepped into the opening and in I went, flour ande all."
i,, During the flood, their provisions commenced to run low. They still
- had some coffee, flour and syrup in their possession, but they were fifty
miles from town, and water everywhere around them, the higher land being
the only dry place. They had to "skimp" along until the water would
sink down so they could go to town for provisions.

The following incident happened in the spring of 1881:

"One day a starved hunter, Mr. Matt, came along and wented to board
with Mr. Hogenson. He had a gun and some ammunition along. As their
meat supply was almost gone, they promised to help him out, providing
he would get some meat for them. He promised to do all he could, al-
though game was not plentifu]l at that time of the year. He shot a couple
of prairie chickens the first few days. However, one morning when the
meat supply was gon (Mr. Hogenson believed it was providence that sent
it) a large, lonely goose came soaring in the air, looking for a place
to settle down. Vihen the goose came over a bluff east of their location,
she must have noticed a small lake formed by the melting snow close to
their camp, and there she settled down. Mr, Matt got his gun and started
off, remarking, "There's a dead goose." This was true enough for as
soon as they heard the report of the gun, the goose flooped her wings
and could move no more. The next thing was to get the bird on dry land
without getting too wet. At that time, lr. Hogenson had an ox which
they had trained for riding bareback, so he got the ox and started out
to get the goose on the smell lake. VWhen he came close to the bird and
reached for it, the ox became frightened and started to do some broncho
stunts, flopping Mr. Hogenson off into the water. The ox made for the
shore and Mr. Hogenson picked up the goose and started for camp. Soon
preparéations were made to get the goose roasted. Ilir. Hogenson remarked
that they would have a "real" feast for once, and they amused themselves
over thelir first hunting experience in Romness Township.

These and other experiencesﬁ%@oth laughable and serious, were had
by the early ploneers. Many a pleasant and interesting moment has the
ploneer spent recalling past memories of the sacrifices and trials they
went through in ord;gﬁo make an easler pathway ¢ for the coming gener-
lation, and their co nunity a happier and more cheerful place in which
-to dwell.

Mr. Hogenson's early farm machinery was an old fashioned walking
plow and a wooden harrow; oxen were used for power. He bought his first
horses in the year of 1883,

The early crops were hwheat and oats. The first year, five acres
of wheat was not very good due to his poor farming. The following year
the yield was thirty bushels to = the acre of wheat.,

The fuel in early days was wood, which they got from the timber near
their location. . :
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- The first school of Romness Township was bullt in 1883; located on
Section fourteen. The teacher was lr. Markwood.

In the early part of the pioneer days, they did not have churches
“pbut held the services in the different homes. Mr. Rev. Vaage was the
~f£irst traveling preacher.

In 1882, the first church congregation was organized by Rev.cg.
Lundeby. They bullt a church in 1887 located on Section 22. The
congregation named the church Ringsaker, having Rev. 0. K. Quamme as
thelr pastor. ;

Mr. Hogenson served as postmaster from 1887 to 1904. He was ap-
pointed postmaster of Romness Township during the year 1887, The Rom-
ness postoffice was established a few years earlier with Peter Mathison
as postmaster., In 1887, he was elected County Commissioner for one
term; he also acted as town and school clerk for many years. He took
an active part in organizing and establishing the Romness lMethodist
Church of which he has been a member since it first started., He has =
always been ready to help in worthy causes for moral uplift of the
community.

Mr. and Mrs. John Hogenson have spent forty-seven years in Romness
Township and can recall many hardships and pleasant memories of tthedr
pioneer days.

They have had nine children in all, of whom seven are still living:
Edward Rellevin, Van Couver, British Columbla; Ragna Josephine (Mrs.
Carl Bue), Peter Lewis and August Nicolae, Cooperstown, North Dakota;
Henry Joseph and Otto Melvin, Portland, Oregon; and Ida Csroline (lMrs.
Lawrence Stenbro), Aneta, North Dakota. The other two, who passed away,
are Hellene Mathilde (Mrs. Ole Anderson) in 1924; and Clara Julia in
1908,

They have been the grandparents of twenty-three grandchildren.in
all of whom eighteen are still living. Hellene Mathilde was the mother
of ten children, John Oliver, Lillian Kathleen, Elmer Spencer, Marion
Henriette, Clara Alice, Arthur Lewis, Ruth Irene, Ida Elizabeth, Wilfred
Douglas and Myrtle Florence. Ragna Josephine, the mother of two children,
Borghild Constance and John Calmer. Ida Caroline, mother of three chil-
dren, Caroline Josephine died 1923, Laura Irene and Raymond Leonard.
LPeter Lewlis, the parent of twins, Karline Jean and Mary Lols died 1925.
~Bdward Bellevin, father of five children, Gladys Elizabeth, and Clarence
ILyle, Cecil Loyd, died 1927, Earl died 1925 and Raymond. Otto, the
father of one son, Glynomore,

The plioneer's present home is located in Township 147, Range 58,
Section 16 of Griggs County. His present location is about a half mile
across the river from his pioneer buildings. It is located near the
bend of the Sheyenne River, with the river and the woods forming the
background for his buildings.
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which proved to be a great asset to the country in bringing more settlers
and furnishing employment to those already here and to new arrivals.

Rollin C., Cooper was the manager of the Cooper Brothers' farms until
it was dissolved by mutual consent. Besides his farming interest, hs

~erected one of the first two grain elevators and personally operated

o
-

them. He was one of the organizers of the Cooperstown-Sanborn and Turtle
llountain Railroad, and served as 1ts president during its construction
until it was completed as far as Cooperstown when it was sold to the
Northern Pacific Railroad Company in the early eighties. lr. Cooper,

as well as'his railroad project, aided materially in building up many
public enterprises in the community. R. C.Cooper was the founder of the
city of Cooperstown and it was named in the honor of the Cooper Brothers,

When Griggs County was formed from Trail and Foster Counties in 1881
and organized on June 10, 1881, R. C. Cooper was one of the County
Commissioners, appointed June 16, 1882. The County Seat was located at
iope but in November, the same year, by a vote of the people it was
moved te Cooperstown.

- Mr, Cooper has served the community in many important positions and
has stood for right and justice. He was elected to the House of Repre-

sentatives In 1894, and to the Senate in 1898, serving one term in each

branch of the legislature.

While a member of the house, he was chairman of the railroad com-
mittee and was a member of other important committees. He has always
been a resident of Cooperstown and vicinity, except in later years when
he has partly retired from business and found time to follow the wild
goose south in the fall but returns in the spring. e is still active,
though he has eighty-one years to his credit, and takes great interest
in Griggs County which he has greatly helpéd and done his part in up-
building.

In 1882, the railroad was completed to Hope and the preliminary
survey pointed to Sheyenne. The townsite boomers came into the valley
and loczted the town of Mardell on Section 13, land now owned by Nels
Arneson, in Washburn Township. It sprung up like & mushroom and vanished
almost as = quickly as it came when it became evident that the projected
railroad would not come that way, ;

\ lMardell had at one time a commodious hotel, two general stores, one
thardware store and one drug store, land locaters to assist settlers in
Alocating their claims and getting their filings recorded in the United
States land office. Pettifogers, land sharks and everything that belongs

‘to an orderly village, except a saloon which was at that time commonly

the first need looked for in a new tofm.

The people of that town were prosperous and contented uhtil it was
found out they would miss the railpoad, The road to Cooperstown at that
time was nearing completion. Business men packed their goods, some
moved to Cooperstown and others to Hope. Some of the bulldings were still
there but long before this they have been moved.
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early Days was the Sioux massacre in Minnesota in 1862. Then in 1863
came the expedition of General Sibley through what is now Griggs County.
‘Hec camped at Sibley Lake just south of Binford. The remains of hils
camp (Camp Sibley) are still to be seen. This camp was established to
care for the sick and footsore soldiers before starting on iIn pursuit

~of the Indians that had traveled toward the lMissourl RBiver. The fate
+of the Custer #xpedition in Montana had barely ceased to be news when
word came to our ploneers that a llanitoba Tribe of Indlans were on the
war path. In addition to all these rough reports a real danger was
thought to exist because of the residence of Indians on a reservation
near Devils Lake, practically at our very door.

All these stories with a few facts would naturally tend to create
a feeling of uneasginess and restlessness especially on the part of those
gérly pioneers who were nervously inclined. TImaginations were working
overtime. There was constant fear that the cunnlng and treacherous
savages would escape the watchfulness of the soldiers on the reservatlons
and descend upon our seltlement before any call could be made for help.

Under these conditions, it was an easy matter for elarmists to meet
with success in building up some feeling of the settlers. The rumors
and false storles broadcasted were many, and they always came from the
North. In due time, the rumors took root in Cooperstown. Some of the
citizens, taking the report very seriously, while others laughed at the
notion of preparing for a possible attack by the Indlans.

Cooperstown was wholly umprepared to make a substantial defense 1n
the case of & possible attack. WNo fortiflcations had been thrown up
and there were no arms and ammunition with which to undertake a success-
ful defense in the case of a possible attack. However, a blacksmith by
the name of Wels Kilel took it upon himself to see that someéthing was °
done, even though the town authorltles refused to be moved by the rumors
of danger. With the thought in mind that there was no time to be lost
and that something must be done at once, this blacksmith called upon the

business men and others to finance hls project.

With the financial end of the matter solved, the blacksmith proceed-
ed to manufecture a crude canon and by the time the next rumor floated
in the settlement, the defensive weapon was ready for action. It was
mounted, I presume, on the outskirts of the town, probably upon what
was then called Vinegar Hill, that 1little 1lift of ground to the north
|of the business section of Cooperstown. Near this canon the blacksmith
kstationed himself and kept a careful watch through the night, patroling

-most faithfully, while other less nervous people slept.

One evening the self-appointed watchman reported that the enemy was
camped north of town and that he observed objects dancing about the camp-
fire. While the blacksmith stayed by his cannon to give aid when 1t weas
needed, some of the most daring of the citigens mounted their horses and
rode in the direction of the supposed Indian Camp to investigate. In-
vestigation disclosed that the campfire was nothing more then a burning
straw stack and the dancing Indians proved to be sparks and shadows from
the fire. MAs fer as I know this was the last scare in Griggs County.
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The first white children born in Rommness Township were two boys,
Anton Olson, born Januvary 31, 1881 and Elmer Matison, born iMay 17, 188l.

The first death known to have occurred among the pioneers in CGriggs
. County was that of lMr. Ulven who was a vietim of the severe weather in
L the winter of 188l.

Ulven had a claim up the Sheyenne River and during the summer, fall
and into the winter, he was employed over in the Goose River settlement
where he could earn some money and be in position to spend the balance
of the winter "holding down hils claim" as he called it.

During the winter, when Ulven left Goose River settlement for his
claim, he headed in a westerly directios necessary,.undertaking to walk
the distance of twenty miles. There were no roads to gulde him, nor-
were there any other muldes, only the wide expanse of praikrie. He lost
his bearings on the trip and wandered that day and night and part of
the next before he finally lended at the homestead of Ole Skren, which
wag Just a short distance uoutn ‘and Ee Sb of what i1s now known as the
Bridge School on the Sheyenne River in Washburn Township.

Ulven was completely exhausted, his feet frozen, and he was in a
delirtous condition. Then mortification set in there and since the
assistance of a doctor was not available to the pioneers in those days,
he dled in spite of all the Skren family could do. His remeins were
laid to rest in what was known as the Opﬁeln Cemetery, he belng the
first ploneer settler buried in Griggs County.

The first election was held in Griggs County (at thet time, it was
part of Trail County) at the residence of Omund Nelson Opheim on
November 2, 1880; although belng a Presidential election, politiecs did
not create much excitement mostly for the reason that North Dakota had
a Territorial government. We had no "voice" in electing president,
neither in choice of Territorial offilcers except a delegate to Congress.
We were allowed to elect a Representative to the Territorial Legislature
to be convened at Yankton in January, 188l.

Knute Nomland was elected %o represent the distriet in the House
of Representatives 1n the leglslature; and county officers of Trail
County were also elected at +hls eledtion.

4 Nearly all pioneers, ten or twelve in number, attended the slection,
-orﬁanlzed and elected Judges and Clerks as follows: Owmund Nelson Opheim,
Ole Johnson, 0Ole Skren, C. P. Bolkan, John Hpogenson and John Dahl, the
fifth officer %f my memory does not fall me at this late date.
When the votes were canvassed, C. P. Bolkan was the candidate to
carry the returns across the open prairie; no house for the first twenty
‘miles over to the county seat being at Caledonia, located on the Red

River about sixty miles away. INir. Bolkan carried the ballots in a wooden
box across the country by foot.
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Organization of Griggs County and the second election. Griggs
County was named in honor of Captain Alexander Origgs, and formed from
part of Trail and part of Foster Counties, February 18, 1881 and June 10,
1882.

‘ Allen Breed, Rollin Cooper and Willlam Clives were appointed County
Commissioners by Governor Ordway, for the purposé of organizing the

County Seat at CGriggs County. The County Seat was located at Hope but
moved to Cooperstown November 7, 1882, by “the vote of the people.

On Mareh 8, 1883, the legislature formed Steele County out of part
of Trail County and the two eastern tiers of townships of Griggs County,
leaving the latter at its present size.

When Griggs County was organized, the seat of Government was left
at Hope although that place was located 'almost in the Southeastern
corner. Soon thereafter Cooperstown was plotted as being a more central
point and was naturally favored by the settlers in the western part,
which led contest for the removal of the county seat from Hope to Coopers-
town.

During the campalgn of 1882, Griggs County was divided into three
election districts with polling places at Hppe, Cooperstown, and Ottowa.
The maln issue was the moving of the County seat.

Interested parties on both sides made preparations to carry the
election and many rumors circulated during the campaign before and after
the eledtion what each party had undertaken. It was said that Hope o
parties hired thirty idle men *from a neighboring county, fed and paid
them for thirty days so as to make them legel voters, At the eve of
election, men went over to Hope from Cooperstown to persudde them to
vote for Cooperstown which the return of the election proved to contain
some truth by the handsome vote Cooperstown received in that precinct.
llany other cunning storles besides these were told to "beat" the other

fine

party. Fire water" was freely used in some quarters.

The election was held and returns showed 1t was carried by Coopers-
town with a handsome majority.

\ Then preperations were made to have the seat of government moved to

. Cooperstown but objections were made by some of the people of Hope. H.
~I's Smart, Reglster of Deeds and County Clerk was favoring Cooperstown

~~and had possession of the principal records, which were talken over to

Cooperstown during the night and placed in a granary under guard. Al
Pinkerton, later sheriff, was one of the guardsmen, Several nights later,
some of the Hope sportsmen came over, held up the guard and took the
records awey from them.

Then for a time Cooperstown, the County Seat, had a granary for a
Courthouse. The offices were Register of Deeds, and the County Clerk,
But they had no records. ;

Then plens were laid to apprehend, arrest and prosgcute the perpe-
trators but sometime later the records Wereé returned. This ends the
County Seat controversy. , e
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In 1879 came Omund Nelson Upheim from lowa, ile is considered
by av&ryana the first settler in what is now Griggs County.

In I880,came C.P.Bolkan,Amund Fluto,0le Skren, Ole iHavig and J
John Torfin s WhO tcak land in Washburn D Arna Luaknﬁun John

Atchison and #lex Paunders arrived the same year and ool land in
Bverdrup Tp. .

So far all the settlers were in the valley,strung along the
river (Sheyenne) from the southera yo the northern boundary of the
county,not suspecting that anyone would settle on the prairies, But
the unexpected happened,ond word was brought into the valley that
someone with abundant financial strenght had bought a largze bloeck of
lend on the preirie and would start preparations in the fall so as to b
be ready to turn the sod and begin active farming operations in the sp
spring of 1881, Upon investigation,the rumors were found to be true,
The Cooper Brothers had astually purchased many thousands of acres

and were getting ready to operate their farms whieh proved to be a
great asset to the country in bringing more settlers to work their
londs,and in furnishing employment to those already there,

: kollin C.Cooper was the manager of the Cooper Bros,'farus
until the partnership was dissolved by mutual consent. Besides his
farming interests, he erected one of the first two grain alevatars,
and personally operated them. ie was one of the organizers of the

Coop matawn«»anborn Glurtle Mts Rollroad and served as 1ts president
during its constrnetion until it was completed as far as to Cooper-
stown whan it wass sold to the Northerm Pacific i,R, in the early
eighties, lir, Cooper ,as well as his railroad project, alded
materially in building up many public antergrises in the community.
Mr.Goapgr ves the founder of Cooperstown and it was nemed in honor

of the Cooper Bros,

- VWhen Origgs county was formed from Tralll and Foster
counties in I88I and orgenized on Junel(,IS88I,R,C.Cooper was one of
the county commissioners,appointed Jnnelé IB@E. The county seat was
located at iope,but in Nbvambﬂr of the aamﬂ year,it vas maved to. Cooper

“town by a vote of the people.

lr. Cooper has served the community in meny important
pasitions and has always stood for right and justice. !le wes elected
to the House of Representatives in lBQé and to the Senate ini898,
serving one term in each branch of the Legislature, In earlier years,
when he had retired from active business,he followed the wild geese
south in the fall and wintered in Morida but these 1. 8% years,being
in poor health, he stays in Floride the whole year, He still takes
great interest in Crigges county,which he helped in upbullding.

In I882, the r&ilroaé was completed to ilope and the pre-
liminary survey gointeﬁ to sheyenne iiver or valley. The towmsite \
boomers came into the valley and located the town of lMardell on aen.zs
in Washburn Tp, I¢ sg % ug like a mushroom and vanished elmost as
quickly as it came t became evident that the projected rail-
road would not come tnat way, lardell had at one yime a commodious
hotel two general! stores, one hardware store end a drug store besides

ioeators to assist settlers in locating their claims and getting
their filings recorded in the U,S.land office,Pettifopsers,land sharks
and everyth that Dbelongs to an orderly villace,except a saloon
zhieh was at that time eormonly the first thing 1ooked for In a new
TOWn .
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The gaap&@ of the town were prosperous and contented until it was found

out they would miss the railroad, As the railroad to Cooperstowm was

at that time nearing completion,business men packed their goods some

moving to “ooperstown and others to Hope.Some of the buildinss ree

?ﬁina% at Mardell for a while but e waving wheat field has now taken
There wes one class of early ploneers ,considered by many at thet ¢

time to be undeslrable;later,however,nost of them proved to be vale

uable essets to the county and commmity.These early settlers I have

in mind,were o number of single men who came from JTowa ,Minnesota,Wisc,

and other states,-who imagined that a new country 1ikr this would be

the proper place to get "Rich qulek",start a farm and build a cood home :

so that single blessedness could be removed sometime im the near future

Yhen they arrived,the first thing was to select their claims, They then

bullt shacks,moved in, did thelr own cooking and washing, and by all

appearances seenmed qnite content, Yriddle cakes were an every day

ration and thelr main item of subsistance, Sut the bachelors as well as

many others ,soom discovered that this idea of getting rich quick,

having a @ood férm and home,and having the necessity for living in

single blessednefs removed aia not matericlize at once, for crops

year after year“%u&ﬂed out tc be of lipht yield because of drﬁugh%,.

Trost,hall and éh;.dastructivenesw of gophers, If any crop wasg harvested

and saved,the mongy~lendre would appear and demand his pay,ile had his

cash invested a®/ /2 per cent end held a mortgape on the cropnand

personal preoperbty,thus the paying or renewing at another22’ of interest

and commission depanded took a long time,»nd getting rich was a slow

process, , “

_ But some years later prospects took a turn and times becane brighter

grops better,nortgages were removed,new acquaintances were made and

as the feninins,skx hod greatly increased among the settlers,many of

ywon their neighbor's daughter,providing she was willing

dugout or log cabin in whiech to spend her honeymoon,

ors were the real builders of the country and the

e theldilioRly thacksiohce sttod you will find

neg,with modern improvements, Some of theilr sons have

Canada and other places ,having taken up their

)

;in the "“Flapjack Factory”.

v jof the early day frontler settlements,Griggs county
aved from the murderous and torturous Indlans.

epainsg of abandoned wigwems in the woods along the
pad of buffalo bones upon the prairie ,there were
that the Ipdians hed ever made this immediste

Yo any colsiderable extent.

vag that of I,Ulven who was & victim of severe weather
o Igsl, Mr.Ulven had a claim up the Sheyenne River
/dhp stmmer and fall and into the winter,he was employed n
River settlement,where he could earn some money and be in
50 Epand the balance of the winter "holding dovm his shack”
called At. During the winter when lir.Ulven left Goose River
Tor his elaim,he headed in a westerly direction,undertaking to walk -%
the distgne¢ of 30Mi, There were no roads to guide him,nor were there a;
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any landmarks;nothing but the wide expanse of prairie. ile lost his
bearings on the trip and wandered that day and nightb and part of the
next day Dbefore he finally landed at the homestead of Ole Skren,

which was just a short disrance south and west of what is Imowm as

the Bridge School on the Sheyenne River in Washburn Tpy My JOlwen
was completely exhausted;his feet were frozen,and he was Ina d |
delirious condition.lortification set in and since the assistance of a
a doctor in those days wes not available,he dled,in spite of all the kv
Skren family eould do for him. Iis remains were laid to rest in what is
is knownr as the Uphein Cemetery,he being the first pion eer settler

to be buried in "riggs county, :

- The first election was held in Uriges county(at that time it was.
was part off*raill co,) at thr residence of Omund Nelson Opheim .-
on Nov.2,1880; altho'belng a presidential election, olitics did not crea
create much excitement mostly for the reason that lgrth Dakota had . =
a Territorial Governmebt and we had no "voice" in eleeting the presid
ident,nor in the choice of Territorial officers except e delegate to Con
Congress, We were allowed to eleect a liepresentative to the Territorial
Legislature to be convened ot Yankton in January IS8I. In ut ; :
liomland was elected to represent the distriet in the liouge of Lep-
resentatives in the Legielature; and county officers of *raill Co.
were also elected at this election, , _

Hearly all the piomeers ,ten or twelve in number,attended

the election,organized and elected Judges ond Clerks as Tollows:
gmnnﬁnﬁelsnn»Pphcimm,013 Johnson Skren,C.P.Balken,fohn Iogenson and

ohn Dahl, e ; : ' ,

e When the votes were canvassed,C.P.Bolkan was the candidate
chosen to carry the returns across the open prairie;no house for the
Tirst twenty miled)over to the county seat whieh was at Caledonis,lo
1 ocated on the hed River,about sixty miles away. ir.Bolkan carried
the ballots in a wooden box und crossed the country on foot,

The next Iimportant step before the voters was the organ-
ization of Criggs county and the second election. Griggs county was
named in honor of Capt.Criggs,and formed from parts of Trail anf
Foster counties,feb,I8,1881and June 10,1882, /llen Breed,llollin Cooper
and Willian “lass were appointed Lounty Commissioners by GoveJ.Ordway
for the purpose of ﬁrgangzing the county seat of CGriggs county.

The county seat vis first located at .lope but later moved to Coopers«—
town on Hove7,I882 by vote of the peoples :
' On Marech 8,I883,the Legislature formed teele county out of
part of Tpall county and the two eastern tiers of townships of
Criggs county,leaving the latter at its present size. P
e When Grilges county was orgenized,theseat of govermment vas
left at lope altho’ that place waslocated almost in the southe
eastern cormer,.oon theeeafter Cooperstown mas plotted as being a
more central point and was naturally favored by the settlers in the
western part,which lead to a contest Tfor the removal of the eounty
seat Tfrom lHope to Cooperstoan . L e
, During the campaign of I882,0riggs county was divided into |
three clection distriets with polling places ay liope,Ottawa and 4
Cooperstovm,The main issue of the election was the noving of the count
seat. Interssted parties on both sides made preparations to carry the
electionand meny rumors circulated during the canpalgn before and after

N
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the election as to what each party had undertaken, It was sald that
Hope perties hired thirty idle men from a neighboring counby ;fed and
paid them for thirty deys prior to the election so as to make them le !

epal voters.it the eve of election,men went over to ‘iope from Coopers
towm to persuade them to vote for Cooperstovm,which the return of the

-~ “election proved to contain some truth by the larce wvote" . Coopers-

tovm received in that precinct. Many other cunning stories besides
these were told to "beat® the other party. "Fire Water were freely
used in some guarters, Ko of ,

Cooperstown carried the election.’reparations were nade to have
the seat of government moved to Cooperstown but objections were made
by some of the people of lope, HL.P.Smart, egister of peds oand
County Clerk, favored Cooperstpwn.ie had possession of the principal
records,which were taken ,during the night, to Cooperstown and laced
in a granary. Al Pinkerton was one of the Guardsmen. Several nights
later, some of the ilope sportsmen ceme to Cooperstownj 1eld up the gu
guards and took yhr records to ilope. £ ol

Then for a time Cooperstown had a granary for & courthousej

had the offices of L _gister of Deeds andCounty Clerk but/ no recordse
Plans were maede to abprehend,arrest end prosecute the/perpetrators,

but sometime later,the records were returned. 41705
3o
( f (‘\\
M
Bibliography: ‘ JE Ry
John Hopenson,ploneer since 1880, .|
Cooperstown,i.D. E
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In 1879 tame Omwad Nelsonm Juheim from Towa. Hs is considered by
everyone the flrst aetkiler in ﬁhaa_ia now Grigzzs Counby.

In 1880, came G. P, Bolkan, aand Flrso, Ole Skren, 0le Havig and
John Torfin, who toonk xand in Washbusn ™., Arne Luckason, John
Atehison and Alex Sauaders arrivad the sems yaar and took land 1n
Sverdrup Tp. :

>80 far all the asettlers ware la bhe val.sy, strung alomg the
river (Sheyemme) from ths souwthara to the northern boundary of the
county, not suspesting that anyoue would qettle on the prairies. But
the unnxpoetad heppened, ard word was droaght into the valley that
someone with abundant fisencizl stremgth nad bought e lerge tlosk of
lsnd on the prairis anl would stert preparations in the fsll so as to
be ready tb,turn the sod and bggin active farming .perstions in the
spring of 1531. Upen iﬁvestigation,”ths rumors were found to be true.
The Cooper Brbthsra had actually o wrchesed many thousands of acres
and were getting réady to opercte their larme whieh proved to be a
great asset to the country in biiﬁging more setllers to wbrg_bhnir
lands, and in fwrnishing employment te those already there.

Rollin C. Coeper wes the mensger sf the Cooper Bros." farms until
the partnership was disseclved by mubvel oonzent. Besides his farm-
ing interaats, he erected one of tue firasy two graln elevators, ind
personally opersted thom.  He war one 5f “he organisers of the
cooporatovnﬁSaﬁborm % Turtie Mt. Dellroad end served as i%e president
during its sonstimetion unhl Ik wes compicted as Zar as to Cooper-
atown'whnn’it was soid %o rhe Jorthsrn Peslfic R. R, in the early

eightvies. Mr. Coopar, as weﬁ* a8 hiz reirond projoof, ailded materially
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1n bullding up many pub15~ enterprises in the uommunity. M. cbopgr

| was the founder of Cooperstown and ¥ wa: nemed in honor of the Cooper : f;i;

. Bros. i | 3,

| When Griggs County wes formed from Trelll and Foster countigi 1# e :
1881 and organized on June 10, 1881, R ©€. Cooper was ons of the 3 T;

b
‘ county commissioners, appointed suae lo, 1682 The gouniy seatl was ‘f ﬁ"

dloeated at Hope, but ir NnVnmber’g} the sams yesr, it wss moved to

Cooperstown by a vote of the people.

| Mr. Cooper has served the somumnity in meny importent positions
and has always stood for right and Justi@e. He was elected toc the
Héuse of Rebresontativea in 1294 end Y0 the Seanate ;n 1868, serving
one term in each branch of the Legislaturs. 1In esrlier yeara, when
he had retired from sective business, he follewsd the wild geese south
in the fall and wintersd ir Florids but those last years, being in
poor health, he stays im Flor‘da tke whole year. He still takes great
interest in Grigges county, which he helped im upbullding. |

In 1882, the railroad was comploted to Hope amd the preliminary

survey pointed to Skeyemns Niver of Shayemvs Valisy. The townaito‘
boomers same inte the veallsy and lopatsd the town of Mercell on See. 13 :
in Washburn Tp. I% sprung up like a mushroom end vanished nlmosf as
quickly as 1t ceme when it became evident that the projected rail-
road would not come that way. Merdell Lad at oue time a cemmedious

| hotel, twe general stores, sme hardwars store and a drug svore besides

land loeators to asgsist neltlers in locating tneir ciaims and gettirg

their filings resorded iu ihs U. S. land sffice. Pettileggsrs, land

sharks end evéb;ﬁhing thét helougs ¢ an orderly viliags, oxcept a

saloon waich uns»at thet fame sommonly the first thing looﬁod for in a

new town. Tho people of tas tuwa wore prapervie snd ecavented until

P
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{t was found out they would miss the railroad. As the railroad to
Cooperstown was at that time nearing completion, bﬁsinoés men packed
theif goods, some moving %o Cooperstown and others to Hope. Some of
the bulldings remained at Mardell for a while but a waving wheat field
hga now taken its place, ‘ |

There was one class of early ploneers, considered by many at that
time to be undesirable;.later, however, most of them proved to be val=
uable asseta to the county and communitys These early settlers I have
in mind, were a number of single men who came from Iowa, Minnoaota,
Wisconsin, and other states, who imagined that a new country like this

would be the proper place to get "Rich quick™, start a farm and bulld

a good home so that single blessedness could be removed sometime in the .

future., When they arrived, the first thing was to select their claims.
They then built shacks, moved in, did their own cooking and washing,

and by all appearances seemed qulte contehto Griddle cakes were an

every day ration and their main item of subsistance. But the bachelors

as well as many others, soon discovered that this ldea of getting rich

quick, having a good farm and home, and haviang the necessity for living

in e#ingle blessedness removed did not materialize at once, for crops,
year after yeus, tmrmed ot o be of light yleld because of draught,
fv5ﬁt, aail and the destructiveness of gophere, If any crop was hare

vested and saved, the money-lender would appear and demand his payo

He hed his cash invested at 12 pen: eont and held a mortage on %the crops

and personal property, thus the paying or penewing at another 22% of
1nterest and commission demended took & long time, so getting rich was
a slow process.

t some years later prospects took a turn and times became

hrighter; crops better; mortgages wepe removed, new acquaintences Wirs

ol SRR S o
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made and as the feminine sex had greatly increased among the sottlor,
many of the young men won their neighbor's daughfer, providing she was
willing to move 1nto‘§ dugout or log cabin in vhieh to spend her honey-
moon,

Thése pioneers were the real bulilders of the country and the
county and where their lowly shacks once stood you will find beautiful
farm homes, with modern improvements. Some of their sons have gone
to Montana, Canada and other places, having taken up their fnthpr!l
0ld trade in the ".lspjaeck Factory". | |

Unlike many of the early day frontler settlements, Griggi county
pioneers were saved from the murderous and torturdus Indians. Aside
from the remains of abandoned wigwama in the woods along the river_and
the spread of buffalo bones upon the prairie, there were no visiblc
signs that the Indians had ever made thls Iimmediate county their home
to any considerable extent.

The first death known to have occurred among the ploneers in
Griggs county was that of Nils Ulven who was a viectim of severe weather
in the winter of 1881, Mr. Ulven had a elaim up the Sheyenne River |
and during the summer and fall and into the winter, he was employed
in the Goose River settioﬁsnt, where he could sarn some money and be
in a position to spend the balance of the ﬁinter "holding down his shack’
as we called it. During the winter when Mr., Ulven left Goose River
for his claim, he headed in a westerly direcilus wrdertaking to‘falk
the distance of 20 miles. There were no roads to guide him, nor were
there any landmarks; nothing but the wide expsnse of prairie. He lost
his bearings on the trip and wandered shal day and night and park off

the next day before he finally launded at ths homestesd of 01ls Skren,

whieh was just a short distanse south and west of what is knmown as the
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£

_Bridge Schoo. on Ghe Stcyeane Niver in Vashbura T30,
completely exbaustal; Lis fest were Trosen, and ke wos In 2 ceiiriocus
‘condition. Mortiflisctlon et in and ~inece the assgistarea ~f & Annker

in tbese days was not available, he died, in spite of sl tke Skren
family could do for him, His rewains wore leid to rest in what is 1
known as the Opheim cemotery, he be!? ng the first pioneer aettlor to be
buried in Griggs County.

The first election was held in Griggs county {at that time it was
part of Tfaill co.) at the residence of Omind Nelson Opheim on
November 2, 1880; although being a presidential election, plities did
not éreate much exeitement mostly for the reason that North Dakota had
a Territorial Government and we had no "voice" in electing the president,
nor in the choice of Territorial officers excépt a delegate to Congress.
We were allowed to elect a Representative to the Territorial Legislature
to be convened at Yankton in January 1861l. Knut Nomland was elected
t. represent the district in the House of Rapfesentatives in the
ILegislature; and county officers of Traill Co. were alsc elected at
this election. '

Nearly all the pioneers, ten or twelve in number, attended the
election, organized and elected Judges and Clerks as follq'll Omund
Nelson Opheim, Ole Johnson Skren, C. P. Balkan, John Hogenson and
John.Dnhl.

When the votes were canvassed, C. P. Bolkan was the candidate
chosen to carry the returns aeross the opeh prairie; no house for the
first twenty miles, over to the county seat which was at calondonti,
loeated on the Red River, about sixty miles anayf Mr. Bolkan earried

the ballets 1n a wooden box and crogsed the covntry on foot.

weao Tl
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of Griggs county and the seeond alzssion, Geioas suvunty was nawsd

sounties, Feb. 18, 1881 and June 10, 1882. Allen 3reed, Rollin Cooper

and mmm appointed Souvnty Semmissioners by Gov. J.

Ordway ror-tha.purpose of obganizing the county seat of CGriggs county.

The county seat ias first located at Hopc »ut leter moved to Coopers-

town on Nov. 7, 1882 by vote of the peoeple. 3 %
On March 8, 1883, the Leglslature formed Steels county out of |

part of Trail county and the two eastern tisrs of townships of Guiggs

county, leaving the lavter at 1ts present size.

When Griggs cour..y was o.sganized, the zeal of government was
left at Hope although that plmse waas lccated simost in the south-
eastern corner. Soon thereafter Cvoperstown was plotied as being a more

central point and was neturally caversd [y the selilers in the western

1
1
|
|
f

part, which lead to a conbest for Lo somoval of ¢he county seat from

Hope to Cooperstcim.

| During the campaign of 1882, Griggs county was divided into three
election distriects with polling plaess ak Hope, Ctvave, and Cooperstown. |

The main issue of the electlom wur tre momiﬁg of the county seat. ‘

Interested parties on both sides made preparaticrs to carry the elaction

and many rumors eireulated during the ¢empe.ign befers and after the

election as to what each party had undertaken. It ius sald that Hope

parties hired thirty idle men from a meignboring county, fed and paid
them for thirty days prior to the eleesiown so as fo make them legal
voters. At the eve of oloctioﬁ, men went over tou Hope froﬁ coopprétown
to persuade them to vane for wodptrs ook, Mhabr. The selwn of the
election proved to contain scwe *ruth by the "large vote™ ooopérntown

received in that preecinct. Msry >ther cwnnirg stories becides these

% - oot oo TEe o T SRR A I L i (RS e PO, : N g ,,,,_,_M
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A, Ooaperstown barriad the elactionql Preparaﬁxons were made”to haiifn
Ein i Ehe seat of governmeuc~noved to cocoeretown but objootioau wnr- maao
by some of the people or Hepa, B P, Smart, Register of Deeds and

CCunty clerk, fiidred odoperstownc He had nosaesslon of the prinoip&i,,

reoords,»qhich wlre takon, durlng the nightn to Oooperltown and plaeedf7v ﬁ;
o inTa granary. A Pinkar%on was one of the Guardsmen, Several nighte 3
Intar, somo er tha Hope sportamen came to Couperstown; held up ﬁhe’ '
guarda nnd took thJ reeo*ds to HOpeu"~
Then far a: tlne Oooperatown had a granary for aAoourthouse; hnd
thn ofrical ot Regihtar of Desda and County Clerk but no reoords.

Plana inro -aa. to appruhond, arrOet and prosaoute th D yoetrutqra, .g;: ":

but ncmottme later, the reaords weve proturnad, '

et vj: St \"‘,.Av
At

Elhltograpnyt :
",.J.?-

Jonn aagenlqn, paonear gince ;SBC = x
booperatﬁm, fortiEbakot Pl e
Realdes in Romwse Tp, ; A AN
November 1€y 1898




JOHY HOGENSON  Fem WN URIUSE

JOEN HOGENSONZ the popular postmaster of Romness, North Dakota, near
where he conducts one of the finest farms in Griggs county, 1s a man
of exceptional tact and is widely and favorably known as a citizen

of true worth. He has acted as postmaster of that thriving town for
the past ten years, and is one of the pioneer settlers of the county,
He has passed through many pioneer hardships, and can review the
early history of that reglon. His present home 1s one of the best
located and most modern style of any in the township, and his farm

in section 16, of Romness township, bears every evidence of careful
tillage and modern methods.

Our subject was born on a farm in Norway, Juné 22, 1847, and was the
only son and second child ina family of five children, born to
Hogen and Martha (Johnson) Hogenson, both of whom were natives of
Norwey. His father was a farmer by occupation. Qur subject lived in
his native land until 1867 when he came to America, and located at
Amherst, Fillmore county, Minnesota, where he worked at farming
until he went to Griggs county, North Dskota, in the spring of 1880.
He "squatted" on the place which he now owns and sccupies, and filed
a claim to the land in 1882, He is now the fortunate owner of four
hundred acres of land, and he has made a success of his chosen
calling. His farm is fully improved, and his residence is situated
in a picturesque spot on the banks of the Sheyenne river., It is a
substantlial structure of modern architecture, as are all of the
bulldings on the place, and altogether the estate presents a pleasing
appearance.

Our subject was married in Fillmore county, Minnesota, in 1886, to
Miss Karen Vestern. Wrs. Hogensen was born in Norway, December 23,
1855, and came to Filmore county, Minnesota, when a girl aged twelve
years. She is a daughter of Erick and Bertha Vestern. Nine children
have been bern to Mr. and Mrs. Hogensen, as follows: Helen, Edward,
Clara, Josephine, Louls, Joseph, Ida, Otto and August. The two
eldest children were born in Minnesota, and the other children in
North Dekota. Helen, the eldest daughter, is now Mrs. 0le &nderson,
and resides in Wells County, North Dskota. Mr. Hogenson is prominent
in publlc affairs, and served three years on the board of county
commissioners, having been elected to that office on the Republican
ticket. He has also been clerk of the township in which he resides
continuously since its orgenization, and has served as clerk of the
school district. He has met with unbounded success and is recognized
as a leading citizen., In political faith he is a Populist, and is

a man whb is streng in his convictions for right.

S
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: g : Biography of D. J. Houghton
June 1, 1926 --Blanchard T. Houghton

On March 2, 1892 my father, Douglas J. Houghton, son of Joshia and
Miranda Houghton, came to North Dakota from St. Clair County, Battle
.Creek, Michigan landing at Cooperstown which was at that time merely a
railroad station and a few scattered shacks. He left Battle Creek,
Michigan with the intention of locating in either North Dskota or Montana
which offered possibilities for homesteading and finally decided upon
gOOperstown, North Dakota as his brother, Charles had already located

ere.

At the time of his arrival here, a great amount of the land in the
vicinity was owned by Mr. Rollen C. Cooper who had a large ranch about
a distance of two miles from Cooperstown. Thls was the first place where
my father went to work staying there off and on for about five years.

After leaving the Cooper ranch in 1899, my father went to live with
his brother, Charles on his farm further west from Cooperstown. While
living with his brother he filed on thirty acres of land, and later he
bought one hundred and sixty acres on the same quarter. After he had
filed on the thirty acres, which was located in the southwest quarter
of section 30 of Cooperstown township.

The first house was a slab shack ten by twelve feet with a flat
roof and three squars windows. At first the trips to town for provisions
were rether hard because the road was at that time straight across coun-
fry and no direct route to follow. The times 1t was not so hard to
follow were the times when the neighbors would all go togkther. Some
of them went with their oxen and some had horses.

The first crop that my father put in of his own in North Dgkota
wes the total of thirty acres of oats and wheat and the total number of
bushels received was 1482 of wheat and oats. The price at that time was
from 52¢ to 73¢ for the best wheat, and the best oats were 23¢ and the
average that was grown was 12¢. Even when the prices were so low he
made a little money and had some feed for the next year.

The second year of his farming for himself in North Dakota was not
so prosperous. He broke up some 'more land and put in more wheat, but
this year was the year of the great drought and it left only Just straw
enough for the stock and no crop at all to speak of. That winter 1t was
very hard--lots of snow and it was hard to get to town for provisions,
but the next year was the bumper crop and he fared very well.

My father was married to Miss Katheran Alice Blanchard of St. Clair
‘County, Battle Creek, Michigan. He went to live on his brother's farm
close to his own which had only his claim shanty on it and two years -
later built the house that he occuples at the present time.

The pioneer is now loceted on his farm southwest of Cooperstown on
the southwest quarter of section thirty.

His present address 1is:
Douglas J. Houghton
Cooperstown, North Dakota

RFD #3



J -/ Biography of Houghton Family
: --Ruth Houghton

A

In 1856 Miranda and Joshua Houghton with their family of four chil-
dren Rebecca, Maria, John, and George moved from Coleberg, Canade, in
the Province of Ontario and took up theilr new homes seven miles west of
“%. Clalr in the county and township of St. Clair.

There they worked a small farm carrying on diversified farming.

During the time of their stay on this farm three sons were born,
BenjJamin Luther in 1858, Wilmot Peter in 1861 and Charles Walter, on
September 15, 1863.

A few years later they moved to the township of Columbus in the
county of St. Clair and here worked another farm.

On this farm three sons and one daughter were born to the family
of seven.

The children were employed in taking care of cattle, gathering the
ripened fruits, for there were large orchards of peaches, apples, etc.

The children played on the rivers and creeks near by, catching fish
or swimming. As the family was large, a few of the boys helped the
neighbore in spring and fall.

At the age of fourteen Charles Walter went into a lumber camp in
Northern Michigan. Here they prepared great logs to be sent down the
river in the spring.

He spent four years here. Thrilling letters came from the brothers
in North Dakota telling of the opportunities here and of the beautiful
prelirie land. Thus in 1886 he set out. Taking the train from St. Clair,
he came to Cooperstown, North Dakota March 18, 1886.

He was met at the station by his brother. They were drawn by a
team of mules, the usual means of transportation, to the brother's home
a few miles west of Cooperstown.

Steying a short time with his brother, Charles decided to take work
on Cooper's ranch. He herded cattle in the hills north of Cooperstown,
~ade a bronco all day and slept in a shanty at night.

After a year of herding, Charles took the position of foreman on
-ooper's ranch.

He had the superintending of twenty-two thousand acres of land.
The men had to be taught the art of riding and driving. Many funny inci-
dents took place at the time a"new hand!" came to the ranch. As the mule
was the chief animal of burden he was usually riden but frequently the
mules refused to move or even moved too quickly and dislodged their

rider.

In the spring a érew of nearly one hundred men was taken on. Wood
was brought from the river and sawed for winter use.
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Biography of Houghton Family
--Ruth Houghton

Around the early part of April the men were set to work preparing
the fields for sowing. When this started, the men had to rise earlier
as each had his team to feed, water, and harness.

First twenty-four plows were taken out. Then the harrows and later
¢he drills. If at any time the men needed help that was the supervisor's
Job to help him.

During the summer they put up hey for feed and summer followed large
tracts of land.

When the crops ripened, the binders were taken out. The golden
grain was cut and shocked by an army of men. If a man stopped working
for a few hours and took a nap behind a shock he was sent to get his *
time and pay, and was dismissed.

The threshing on the ranch was done by large Jjmachines. There were
several on the Cooper ranch alone. The supervisors had to be on duty
during threshing time to see about the grain. As there was such a large
amount of grain to be marketed, they drew 1t to town and loaded it in
cars instead of taking it to the elevator.

Once when the mule of a supervisor refused to move the engineer hit
i1t with a hot poker. The mule didn't seem to enjoy the contact and
immedliately dislodged his rider. :

One spring the Houghton and Nierenberg boys declded to take an
antelope hunt up near the James River.

They gathered provisions and blankets and set out. The first night
was spent in an oat bin, the second in a school house, and the third in
an old log barn. On the fourth night they had reeched the Jim River.
That night they camped beneath the trees.

The following ‘morning they were up early, preparing for the hunt.

They set out on their broncos and about nine o'clock they spled the
antelope in a little coulee. They crept around the hill and Jjust as
they came out on the plain the animals spied them and were soon out of
sight.

- In the afternoon they saw the antelope again. They came up to some
0ld buildings and dismounted. Just then a dog bounded out of a remote
corner and with his shrill barking and fierce growls frightened the
antelope away.

After that they never got within a mile or two of the animals.
Thus the trip was a failure as far as game was concerned but a great
success as to pleasure.

The evenings on the ranch were spent in telling storiles of the
earlier days. One of the favorites was the affalr of the county records.
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Biography of Houghton Family
--Ruth Houghton

It seemed that Cooperstown and Hope both wanted the county seat.
They had an election to decide. As there was a raillroad crew up at that
time they all voted for Cooperstown. Some of the men changed suits and
voted twlce. The conditions were the same in Hope only their railroad
‘rew wasn't as large as ours and thelr population a little less, 86
Jooperstown won by a large majority.

However, Hope was not satisfied so four armed men, Allen Pinkerton,
Eleck Glass, William Glass, and John Houghton were stationed to guard
the records.

They slept by the records with their guns at their sides. However,
in the middle of the night the representatives of Hope came in and held
the men at the point of the gun while others took the records. Of
course this was a great dissappointment to the inhabitants of Cooperstown
but they were undaunted. So a few days later they went after and secured
the preclous records.

There was great rejoicing in Cooperstown and great anger in Hope.
Thus 1t was decided best to extend Steele County to take in Hope and
teke a few tiers off Trail to extend Griggs.

In 1887 Charles Houghton filed on a homesteed, four miles east and
one mile south of Cooperstown. In Cooperstown township he took up a
fourth of section 32 and range » 49 and in Bald Hill township he
took up a fourth of section five.' He had to swear in an affidavit before
the Notary Public. They were allowed three quarters of land.

At the ™ time you claimed up your land you had to have lived on it
a few months a year for five years and have a shanty, a barn and a well
on the land.

On March 3, 1892 Charles was Married to Alberta Langford at her
home. Cora, Milton, Kenneth and Ruth were born to them. KXenneth died
at the age of two years.

In 1907 Charles Houghton with his family moved to Cooperstown
where he has served on the Board of Education and Alderman.

Cora Houghton--Mrs. James Hazard
Cooperstown,
r North Dakota

Milton T. Houghton
San Francisco
California

Ruth A. Houghton
Cooperstown
North Dgkota
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